
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MEETING 
 

PACKET 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 3, 2018 



 Town Council 
 

Agenda 
Monday, December 3, 2018 

          Town Hall, Council Chambers 
 450 So. Parish Avenue 

7:00 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and 
integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community. 

 
Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen 
comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When 
several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a spokesperson to state that position. 
If you wish to speak at the Town Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up sheet and present it to the Town Clerk. 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
A) Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2) ROLL CALL 
 

3)    AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

4)    RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 

5)    PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The “Consent Agenda” is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  The Mayor will ask if any 
Council member wishes to have an item discussed or if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an *asterisk.  
The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion separately.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6)   CONSENT AGENDA 
 A) Town Council Meeting Minutes November 19, 2018 
       B)  2nd Reading – Ordinance Number 2018-154 – Amending Section 17-230 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to Add  
             Subsection (b) Imposing Impact Fees on Behalf of the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District 
       C)  Resolution 2018-18, Committing Funds to CDOT for I-25, US-34, 402 Interchanges  
       D)  Resolution 2018-22, Affirming the Town’s Commitment to Enter Into An Intergovernmental Agreement with the Colorado 
             Department of Transportation Related to Disposal of the Interstate 25 East Frontage Road From State 60 to Ronald Reagan  
             Blvd 
       E)  Water Agreement Between Town of Johnstown and Keto Colorado Enterprises, LLC 
 F) Appointment of Planning Commissioner 
  
7)   TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
8)   TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9)   OLD BUSINESS 

 
10)   NEW BUSINESS 
      A)  Public Hearing – The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat 
  B)  Public Hearing - The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards 
        C)  Intergovernmental Agreement for the Assessment, Collection, and Remittance of Emergency Services Impact  
              Fees for Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District  
        D)  Resolution No. 2018-19, A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures and Revenues for Each Fund and Adopting a Budget for  
              the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the Calendar Year Beginning on the First Day of January, 2019 and Ending on the Last  
              Day of December, 2019  
        E)  Resolution No. 2018-20, A Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money to the Various Funds and Spending Agencies in the 
              Amounts and for the Purposes as Set Forth, for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year 
        F)  Resolution 2018-21, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes for the Year 2019 to Help Defray the Costs of  
             Government for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2018 Budget Year 
       G)  Discussion – Purchasing Policy 
       H)  Discussion – FY 2019 Council Goals & Objectives 
 

 

 



 
 
11)  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
       A) An executive session for a conference with the Town attorney pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) to discuss  
       possible litigation between the Town of Johnstown and Thompson Crossing Metro District. 
   
11)  COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

12)  MAYOR’S COMMENTS    
 
13)   ADJOURN 
  
 
 
                                                                                        WORK SESSION 
 
1)  Representatives from Waste Management  
 

     NOTICE OF ACCOMODATION 
If you need special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (970) 587-4664. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 



AGENDA ITEM 6A-F 

 

 

 

CONSENT  
AGENDA 

• Council Minutes – November 19, 2018 
• 2nd Reading – Ordinance No. 2018-154 

• Resolution 2018-18 
• Resolution 2018-22 

• Water Agreement – Keto Colorado 
                             Enterprises, LLC 

• Appointment of Planning 
                              Commissioner 

 
 

 
 

 

 

                        



 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 6A-F 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Consent Agenda 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The following items are included on the Consent Agenda, which may be 
approved by a single motion approving the Consent Agenda: 
 
     A)  Council Meeting Minutes – November 19, 2018 
     B)  2nd Reading – Ordinance Number 2018-154, Amending Section 17-230 of the Johnstown Municipal Code 
           to Add Subsection (b) Imposing Impact Fees on Behalf of the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection  
           District 
     C) *Resolution 2018-18, Committing Funds for Improvements to the Interstate 25 and U.S. Highway 34 
            State Highway 402 Interchanges as Part of the Colorado Department of  
            Transportation’s North I-25 Design-Build Project 
     D)**Resolution 2018-22 Affirming the Town’s Commitment to Enter Into An Intergovernmental Agreement with  
             The Colorado Department of Transportation Related to Disposal of the Interstate 25 East Frontage Road  
             From State 60 to Ronald Reagan Blvd 
     E)***Water Agreement Between Town of Johnstown and Keto Colorado Enterprises, LLC  
     F)****Appointment of Planning Commissioner 
  
*The Town Council previously approved an amendment to an intergovernmental agreement between the Town and  
the State of Colorado, for the use and benefit of CDOT, committing $6,000,000 toward the cost of the improvements 
to the Interstate 25 and U.S. Highway 34 and State Highway 402 interchanges, which payment is due December 31, 
2020.  The Town Council approved Resolution No. 2017-11, on December 4, 2017, committing $2,000,000 from the 
unassigned fund balance for the General Fund.  Resolution No. 2018-18, sets aside and commits another $2,000,000 
from the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
** On October 29, 2018, the Colorado Department of Transportation met with the Town Council in a work session to 
discuss the possibility of the Town taking ownership of the East Frontage Road. Generally the Town Council was 
receptive to this ownership, provided the conditions of the roadway would be acceptable to the Town including 
overlaying of certain road areas of the Frontage Road, bridge improvements on the Frontage Road to pass the 100-
year storm, and engineering design of High Plains Boulevard would be included. The resolution included affirms and 
memorializes that Johnstown is receptive to ownership of the road contingent upon an approved IGA between the 
two parties under mutually beneficial conditions. 
 
***When Keto Colorado Enterprises (“Keto”) annexed property into the Town of Johnstown (“Town”), Keto entered 
into an Annexation Agreement, committing to dedicate all water rights appurtenant to the property at the time of 
development.  The attached Water Agreement between the Town and Keto permits Keto to exchange up to 120 units 
of Colorado Big Thompson Project (“CBT”) water that is appurtenant to the property for shares of the Consolidated 
Home Supply & Ditch Reservoir Company (“Home Supply”).  Keto would be permitted to exchange up to 22.5 CBT 
units for each adjudicated Home Supply share and up to 18 CBT units for each un-adjudicated share.  Keto would 
then be required to dedicate the Home Supply shares to the Town at the time of development and, with respect to the 
un-adjudicated shares, pay the water court transfer fee required in the Code (See Paragraph 3).  The remaining 
provisions of the Annexation Agreement remain in full force and effect.  The Town Water Engineer provided the 
calculation for the water exchange and the Town Attorney drafted the Water Agreement.   
 
****Commissioner and Chair Jim Dowling resigned his position effective September 12, 2018.  Mr. Dowling’s four-
year term of office would nominally expire on August 21, 2021. The position vacancy was posted on the Town’s 
website, and advertised in the Johnstown Breeze. The Planning and Zoning Commissioners met with a candidate, 
Jason Grentz and the consensus was to recommend his appointment. A copy of Mr. Grentz’s application is in the 
Council packet. 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 



LEGAL ADVICE: The entire Consent Agenda may be approved by a motion of the Town Council approving the 
Consent Agenda, which automatically approves each and every item listed on the Consent Agenda.  If a Council 
member wishes to have a specific discussion on an individual item included with the Consent Agenda, they may move 
to remove the item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval: I move to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
For Denial: 
  
Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 





The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, November 19, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at 450 S. Parish Avenue, Johnstown. 
 
Mayor James led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Those present were:   Councilmembers Lebsack, Lemasters, Mellon, Molinar Jr., Tallent and Young 
 
Also present:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager, Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, Aaron Sanchez, 
Commander, John Franklin, Town Planner and Diana Seele, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
  
Agenda Approval 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to approve the Agenda 
as submitted.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Councilmember Lebsack made a motion seconded by Councilmember Mellon to approve the removal of 
Item 6D Keto Water Agreement and approve the amended Consent Agenda for the following items:      

• November 5, 2018 Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• Payment of Bills 
• October Financial Statements 
• Water and Sewer Service Agreement for Brakes Plus at 2534 
• Agreement between Town of Johnstown and Johnstown Milliken Chamber of Commerce  

Motion carried with a unanimous vote. Councilmember Tallent abstained due to Item 6F. 
 
New Business 
 
A.  Public Hearing – Presentation of 2019 Proposed Budget –  
 Mayor James opened the Public Hearing at 7:20 p.m. and having no public comments closed the 
hearing at 7:41 p.m.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to 
approve the 2019 proposed budget.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.  Councilmember Tallent 
abstained. 
 
B.  Public Hearing (First Reading) Ordinance No. 2018-154, Amending Section 17-230 of the 
Johnstown Municipal Code to Add Subsection (b) Imposing Impact Fees on Behalf of the Front Range 
Fire Rescue Fire Protection District -  This request is from the Front Range Fire Protection District for 
Council to approve Ordinance 2018-154, which will impose impact fees on their behalf to help offset the 
projected impact that new development has on the District’s Capital Facilities.   
 
Mayor James opened the Public Hearing at 7:42 p.m. and having no public comments closed the hearing 
at 7:44 p.m.  Councilmember Lemasters made a motion seconded by Councilmember Young to approve 
Ordinance No. 2018-154 to permit for the charging and collection of impact fees imposed on behalf of 
the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   



Johnstown, Colorado                                           -2-                                         November 19, 2018 
 
C,  Consider Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Agreement Between the Town of Johnstown and 
Adolfson & Peterson Construction – Johnstown Community Recreation Center Construction Project – 
Amendment No. 2 establishes the Design Development costs.  This aspect of the project is for the 
structural, electric, mechanical, plumbing and other miscellaneous components.  The Guaranteed 
Maximum Price and Exhibit A.2 of Amendment No. 2 was reviewed by Mr. LaCouture, owner’s 
representative.  Councilmember Lebsack made a motion seconded by Councilmember Lemasters to 
approve Amendment No. 2 (including Exhibit A.2) to the Agreement between the Town of Johnstown 
and Adolfson & Peterson Construction in an amount not to exceed $17,861,342.00, and authorize the 
owner’s representative (Mr. LaCouture) with approval from the Town Manager, to approve change 
orders in an amount not to exceed five percent (5.0%) of the contract amount and, authorize the Mayor 
to sign the Amendment.  
Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
D.  Consider (1) Resolution Adopting Freedom Parkway Access Control Plan and (2) 
Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Freedom Parkway Access Control Plan - Freedom 
Parkway is the working name for the east-west roadway from Hwy 402 at I-25 east to Weld 
County Road 49, which roadway is known as Hwy 402, Larimer County Road 18 and Weld 
County Road 54. Larimer County, Weld County, City of Evans, City of Greeley, City of 
Loveland, Town of Milliken, Town of Kersey and Town of Johnstown have portions of the road 
in their respective jurisdictions. The Access Control Plan is consistent with the Town’s right of 
way and access standards. At present, the Town has annexed properties along the western portion 
of the Parkway (County Road 18), from County Road 3 west to County Road 7, including The 
Villages at Johnstown, 402 Exchange and Mountain View Farms.  The Intergovernmental 
Agreement Regarding Freedom Parkway Access Control Plan requires that each participating 
entity adopt a resolution approving the plan.  Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded 
by Councilmember Lebsack to Approve Resolution No. 2018-17, Adopting Freedom Parkway 
Access Control Plan.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.  Councilmember Lemasters made a 
motion seconded by Councilmember Young to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement 
regarding the Freedom Parkway Access Control Plan and authorize the Mayor to sign it.  Motion 
carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
                                                               
 
                                                                       Mayor                                     
 
 
                                                          Town Clerk/Treasurer 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
ORDINANCE 

 
                        No. 2018-154 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       















  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2018-22 

 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-22 

 
AFFIRMING THE TOWN’S COMMITMENT TO ENTER INTO AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RELATED TO DISPOSAL 
OF THE INTERSTATE 25 EAST FRONTAGE ROAD FROM STATE 60 
TO RONALD REAGAN BOULEVARD   
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 
Town’s Home Rule Charter; and  

WHEREAS, Interstate 25 (“I-25”) is the primary north-south highway connection for 
Northern Colorado, including the Town of Johnstown (“Town”), with traffic flows also served 
by an adjacent frontage road; and  

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2018, representatives of the Colorado Department of 
Transportation (“CDOT”) made a presentation to Town Council, indicating that the department 
has a long standing approach of disposing of frontage roads as communities develop and local 
streets improve access; and  

WHEREAS, consistent with its policy, CDOT represented that it desires to dispose of 
the I-25 East Frontage Road from State Highway 60 to Ronald Reagan Boulevard (“East 
Frontage Road”), and requested that, subsequent to CDOT undertaking certain improvements to 
the East Frontage Road and other related benefits to the Town, the Town agree to assume the 
obligations related to the East Frontage Road; and 

WHEREAS, to effectuate the foregoing, CDOT seeks to execute an intergovernmental 
agreement with the Town; and  

WHEREAS, CDOT recognizes that a portion of the East Frontage Road is not currently 
within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Town; and  

WHEREAS, assuming the Town and CDOT are able to negotiate a mutually-acceptable 
intergovernmental agreement, the Town approves of CDOT’s disposal of the East Frontage Road 
and agrees to undertake the obligations related to the roadway.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT:  
 

1. The Town Council hereby makes the affirmations stated in the recitals set forth 
above.   

 



2. Assuming the Town and CDOT are able to negotiate a mutually-acceptable 
agreement whereby CDOT agrees to undertake certain improvements to the East Frontage Road 
and provide other related benefits to the Town, the Town Council supports CDOT’s disposal of 
the I-25 East Frontage Road from State Highway 60 to Ronald Reagan Boulevard and agrees to 
enter into an intergovernmental agreement with CDOT related to disposal of the East Frontage 
Road. 
 

3.  This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption. 
 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___ day of December, 2018. 
 
       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST: 
 
By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
      Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Scott James, Mayor 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
WATER 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 
  

 
 

  
 
 
       



















 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MANAGER 
 

REPORT 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 

 

DATE:  December 3, 2018 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Departmental Report 

 

 

Upcoming Town Council Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like staff to 

schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

 12/03/2018 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 12/10/2018 – Work Session (None Scheduled) 

 12/17/2018 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 12/24/2018 – Work Session (None Scheduled) 

 01/07/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Police Department 

*Note – The Police Department is broken into two teams, blue side and red side. 

Training: 

 November 21, 2018 blue side received Pressure Point Control Techniques Training from 

8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

o Handcuffing 

o Escort, Joint Locks 

o Pressure Points 

o Defensive Counter Strikes 

o Shoulder Pin 

o Impact Weapons 

o Weapon Retention/Disarming  

 November 21, 2018 blue side received recertification training in Less Lethal from 4pm to 

6 pm. 

o Classroom review 

o Practical examination at the range (firing live rounds from a shotgun at a 

stationary target) 



o Written test 

 November 21, 2018 blue side received recertification training in Oleoresin Capsicum 

(Pepper Spray Compliance Techniques) which consisted of both classroom 

review/training and a written test. 

Community Policing, Outreach & Miscellaneous Items: 

 November 16, 2018 Officer D. Perry and Officer J. Wood assisted the Loveland Police 

Department with their criminal interdiction night.  The purpose of the operation was to 

target the sale and transport of illegal narcotics and other crimes related to criminal 

activity.  The targeted areas were any place within the City of Loveland to include HWY 

34 within Johnstown town limits.  Our officers worked in conjunction with Loveland 

Police Department, their Street Crimes Unit, members of the Northern Colorado Drug 

Task Force, Larimer County Parole Officers and Loveland/LCSO K9 officers  

o Officer Perry and Wood assisted with two warrant arrests and two drug related 

arrests. 

 

Administration 

 Finance Director – The Finance Director position is being advertised on the following 

web sites:  Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA), Colorado Municipal 

League and the Town of Johnstown.  The last day to remit a letter of interest and resume 

is November 30, 2018. 

 Public Works Director – The Town received 9 applications.  Staff is reviewing the 

applications and will set up interviews during the week of December 3rd.   

 Planning Director – The Planning Director position is being advertised on the following 

web sites:  American Planning Association (APA), Colorado Municipal League and the 

Town of Johnstown.  The last day to remit a letter of interest and resume is December 7, 

2018. 

 Thompson River Park & Recreation District (TRPR) – Matt reached out to the Executive 

Director of TRPR to meet and learn about the services delivered to the community by the 

district. 

 Weld County RE-5J School District – Matt met with Superintendent Leslie Arnold to 

discuss future development in the community of Johnstown as they continue planning 

efforts related to district wide capital needs. 

 Waste Management – Diana and Matt will meet with Waste Management on Thursday 

the 29th. At this time they will also be asked to attend the Council Meeting on the 3rd of 

December to provide a report during a work session about their fee requests. 

 

Planning Department 

 Building Permit Software – Currently the Town utilizes excel spreadsheets for building 

permitting issuance and tracking purposes. This archaic method makes it difficult to 

issue, track, and close individual and historical permits in the community. We will be 

looking at an affordable option and demoing a comprehensive permitting system 

designed by ProCode next week to help streamline processes and improve software 

reliability and design. 

  

 



Public Works Department 

Streets 

 Holiday Decorations – Crews have completed installing Christmas decorations in 

preparation for the holiday season including the Johnstown Jingle on the 9th of December. 

 Senior Center Parking Lot – Parking lot lights at the senior center facility were changed 

over to LED for lower electric costs and a brighter white light for visibility. 

 Road Grading – Town Street Crew graded 8 miles of gravel roads in Town. 

 Winter Weather – Street Crew came in on Saturday and Sunday’s storm and salted streets 

as needed to mitigate slippery conditions. 

 Town Hall – Street Crew reset the timer for parking lot lighting which should be working 

throughout the night. 

 

Water & Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 KH Roofing – The contractor, KH Roofing is working on the DAF building this week, 

and expects to begin work on filter building next week (December 3rd). Completion of the 

project is still expected by the end of the calendar year. 

 Security Gate at Water Plant - Town and Country Fence is working on the two gate 

installs at the water plan. Completion of this work for security purposes is expected by 

the end of the week. 

 Central WWTP – There are two blowers at the Central WWTP located at the MBBR 

portion of the treatment process which is responsible for meeting discharge limits for 

ammonia removal. While the primary blower is working, our backup blower is not 

functioning due to the bearing being stripped. We repaired this about 6 months ago and 

are now having the company Advanced Mechanical who repaired it the first time to 

review this issue to determine what occurred. 

 Low Point WWTP - We have made repairs to one blower at Low Point and had a second 

rebuilt blower installed as well. While checking the second blower for proper operations, 

we noted it is pulling too many amps due to a failing compressor. Neglecting this will 

burn out the rebuilt motor again. We have contacted Gardner Denver pumps to look into 

this issue and provide a cause and solution.  

 Temporary Fan Press – The Town’s order for the fan press to be installed at the Low 

Point Treatment Center has been delayed until the week of December 16th. In lieu of 

liquidated damages, the vendor has provided the Town with their demo model to use until 

delivery is made on the new unit.   



 
AGENDA ITEM 10A 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 
 

(The Villages at Johnstown) 
 

(Public Hearing) 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10A 
 
SUBJECT:  *Public Hearing- The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat  
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Consider The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Mr. John Franklin, Town Planner  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The applicant, J-25 Land Holdings, LLC has submitted a request for approval 
of The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Preliminary Plat for a 246±-acre parcel of land generally located east 
of I-25 and South of  Larimer County Road 18 (Hwy 402 extended). Proposed amendments to The Villages at 
Johnstown Performance Standards (Design Guidelines) will be considered next on the agenda. 
 
The zoning for the property is Planned Unit Development- Mixed Use, PUD-Residential and PUD-Industrial. The 
development is subject to the R&D, and Cross Annexation Agreement, approved in 2002. The Villages at Johnstown 
Preliminary Plat was approved in 2005. As no final plats were approved in the intervening years the preliminary 
plat has expired. The applicant has updated the preliminary plat document including a new street layout for the east 
single family residential parcel. 
 
Surrounding land uses include the following: north – State Hwy 402, vacant, low density residential; south – 
agricultural; east – agricultural, and west – I-25 East Frontage Road. The property is in two drainage sub-basins and 
slopes gradually to the north and east.   
 
The Preliminary Plat review process serves to identify development issues, and to determine possible means to 
resolving those issues ahead of the major effort and expense of final platting and detailed civil engineering. The 
Preliminary Plat allows large parcels to be subdivided and developed in a logical, phased manner. Issues identified 
during this preliminary process are not expected to be fully resolved, and often become the foundation for special 
provisions in the development agreement(s) to follow. Development issues for The Villages include: the capacity 
of the Low Point Wastewater Treatment Plant; construction by The Villages of a new off-site gravity sewer main 
in County Road 3; dedication of County Road 3 right of way adjoining the property and provision of a 30’ buffer, 
and the extent of pavement improvements on County Road 3E to County Road 18 and, per Larimer County, possibly 
south to County Road 16.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing and, upon review, voted 3 for and 1 against to 
recommend approval of The Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat subject to conditions, as follows: 
1. Comments from Town staff, Town Engineer, Traffic Engineer and outside agencies shall, with the first final plat, 
be resolved, or addressed as special development provisions in the public improvement development agreement(s) 
presented to Town Council for consideration. 
2. During final plat review, the Developer will need to work with the Town to confirm [Low Point] wastewater 
treatment plant capacity for each filing. 
3. Street names will be finalized with the Developer and approved by the Town prior to submittal of the first final 
plat. 
4. Public comments regarding [County Road 3E] traffic and streets be considered. 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A  
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: The Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of The 
Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat, subject to certain conditions being satisfied. 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
For Approval:  I move to approve The Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat (subject to the following 
conditions..). 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of The Villages at Johnstown Preliminary Plat.  
 
 



 2 

Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 
 





















































































































 
AGENDA ITEM 10B 
 
 
 
 

AMENDED PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS 

 
(The Villages at Johnstown) 

 
(Public Hearing) 

 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10B 
 
SUBJECT:  *Public Hearing- The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards  
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Consider The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Mr. John Franklin, Town Planner  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The applicant, J-25 Holdings, LLC has submitted a request for approval of 
The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) amended Performance Standards(Design Guidelines) for a 246±-acre 
parcel of land generally located east of I-25 and South of  Larimer County Road 18 (Hwy 402 extended). The 
Preliminary Plat for The Villages at Johnstown was considered earlier on the agenda. 
 
The zoning for the property is Planned Unit Development- Mixed Use, PUD-Residential and PUD-Industrial. The 
development is subject to the R&D, and Cross Annexation Agreement, approved in 2002. The Villages at Johnstown 
Performance Standards were approved in 2005. Surrounding land uses include the following: north – State Hwy 
402, vacant, low density residential; south – agricultural; east – agricultural, and west – I-25 East Frontage Road. 
The property is in two drainage sub-basins and slopes gradually to the north and east. 
 
The proposed amendments, presented in a red-marked review copy, include changes to the residential guidelines 
and also typographical and grammatical corrections. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing and, upon review, voted unanimously to recommend 
approval of The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards.  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A  
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: The Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of the The 
Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards. 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
For Approval:  I move to approve The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance Standards 
(subject to the following conditions.). 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of The Villages at Johnstown (Hwy 402/I-25) Amended Performance 
Standards.  
 
 
Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 
 









































































 
AGENDA ITEM 10C 
 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENAL  
AGREEMENT 

 
ASSESSMENT, COLLECTION 

AND REMITTANCE OF 
EMERGENCY SERVICES IMPACT FEES 

 
(Front Range Fire Rescue Protection 

District) 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10C 
 
SUBJECT:  Consider Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District for the 
Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees   
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection 
District for the Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees   
 
PRESENTED BY: Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager  
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  In 2016, the Colorado General Assembly amended the Public Safety 
Fairness Act to permit a local government to impose impact fees for fire protection districts that provide fire 
protection, rescue and emergency services for new development.  C.R.S. § 29-10-104.5.  If a local government, in 
its sole discretion, elects to impose an impact fee, then the local government and the fire protection district are 
required to enter into an intergovernmental agreement.  C.R.S. § 29-10-104.5(2)(c). 
 
The Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection District (“District”) obtained an impact fee study which was 
presented to the Town Council on November 5, 2018. The information provided to Council included a 
recommendation to set the impact fees at 70% of the study’s calculation on new development in the area of the 
Town served by the District.  Town Council directed Staff to bring the impact fee ordinance to the following 
Council meeting (November 19) with a final reading of the ordinance set for December 3, 2018. As part of 
enacting the impact fees (passage required by ordinance), an IGA permitting for the assessment, collection and 
remittance of the impact fee must also be approved between the Town and the District. Accordingly, the IGA 
presented for consideration achieves this objective. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE:  The Intergovernmental Agreement for the Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency 
Service Impact Fees was drafted by the District’s counsel and by the Town Attorney. 
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Intergovernmental Agreement for the Assessment, Collection and Remittance 
of Emergency Service Impact Fees. 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
For Approval: I move to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire Protection 
District for the Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees and authorize the Mayor to 
sign it. 
 
For Denial:  I move to deny approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Front Range Fire Rescue Fire 
Protection District for the Assessment, Collection and Remittance of Emergency Service Impact Fees. 
  
Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 























 
AGENDA ITEM 10D 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
2018-19 

 
SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES 

AND REVENUES 
 

FOR EACH FUND 
 
 



 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10D 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2018-19, A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures and Revenues for Each Fund 
and Adopting a Budget for the Town Of Johnstown, Colorado for the Calendar Year Beginning on the First 
Day of January, 2019 and Ending on the Last Day of December, 2019 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Resolution No. 2018-19 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk/Treasurer 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: On November 19, 2018 a public hearing was conducted by the Town 
Council to consider the adoption of the 2019 proposed budget.  
 
Section 12.7 of the Town Charter, states, in part, the following: 
 
 "The Council shall adopt the budget for the next fiscal year by ordinance or resolution on or before 
 the final day of the current fiscal year.” 
 
The adoption of the 2019 budget for the Town of Johnstown must be formalized and made official by 
approval of Resolution No. 2018-19. 
LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________ ______________________________ 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution No. 2018-19. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
For Approval: I move to approve Resolution No. 2018-19, A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures and 
Revenues for Each Fund and Adopting a Budget for the Calendar Year Beginning on the First Day of January 
2019 and Ending on the Last Day of December 2019. 
 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of Resolution No. 2018-19,  A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures 
and Revenues for Each Fund and Adopting a Budget for the Calendar Year Beginning on the First Day of 
January 2019 and Ending on the Last Day of December 2019.  
Reviewed: 
 
___________________________ 
Town Manager 



A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-19 
 
A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES 
FOR EACH FUND AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF 
JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING 
ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY, 2019 AND ENDING ON THE LAST 
DAY OF DECEMBER, 2019. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown has appointed Diana Seele, 
Town Clerk to prepare and submit a proposed budget to said governing body at the 
proper time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Diana Seele, Town Clerk has submitted a proposed budget to this 
governing body on December 3, 2018 for its consideration, and; 
 
WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the 
law, said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a 
public hearing was held, and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or 
register any objections to said proposed budget, and; 
 
WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases 
were added to the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Town Council of the Town of 
Johnstown, Colorado: 
 
Section 1.  That estimated expenditures for each fund are as follows: 
  
 General Fund $  31,260,100 
 Water Fund $    2,483,900 
 Wastewater Fund $    2,074,000
 Conservation Trust Fund $    1,070,000     
 Impact Fee Fund                                                                      $       101,000 
 Drainage Fund                                                                         $       350,500 
 Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund                                       $    9,973,500 
            Contingent Fund                                                                      $    2,164,900 
            Community Recreation Center Fund                                       $  32,000,000 
            Equipment Replacement Fund                                                $       161,000 
 Johnson's Corner Capital Imp. Fund                                       $       144,300 
            Street Maintenance Fund                                                         $       350,000  
 Library Fund                                                                            $    1,570,000     
                                   
          Total Estimated Expenditures                 $  83,703,200 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Section  2.  That estimated revenues for each fund are as follows: 
 
 General Fund 
                       From  unappropriated surpluses                                                 $18,454,100 
                       From sources other than general property tax                            $  6,791,000 
                       From the general property tax levy                                            $  6,015,000 
   
                      Total General Fund   $31,260,100 
 
             Water Fund                                                                                            
                      From unappropriated surpluses                                                   $         -0-                                   
                      From sources other than general property tax                             $  2,483,900 
           Total Water Fund         $  2,483,900 
 
    Wastewater Fund           
           From unappropriated surpluses                                     $     131,500 
           From sources other than general property tax                             $  1,942,500 
 
          Total Wastewater Fund                    $  2,074,000 
 
 Conservation Trust Fund      
           From unappropriated surpluses                              $     820,500      
           From sources other than general property tax     $     249,500 
 
           Total Conservation Trust Fund                   $  1,070,000 
 
 Impact Fee Fund 
  From unappropriated surpluses                $           -0- 
                        From sources other than general property tax                      101,000 
 
  Total Impact Fee Fund      $      101,000  
 
 Drainage Fund 
   From unappropriated surpluses    $            -0-                
              From sources other than general property tax                       $       350,500 
 
  Total Drainage Fund                                $       350,500 
 

Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund 
  From unappropriated surpluses    $    8,658,500  
             From sources other than general property tax                        $    1,315,000 
  Total Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund   $    9,973,500 
 
           Contingent Fund 
  From unappropriated surpluses    $   1,926,400                                                                                                              
  From sources other than general property tax                        $      238,500  
                                     
                       Total Contingent Fund                 $   2,164,900 
    



 Community Recreation Center Fund  
            From unappropriated surpluses                                               $26,000,000            
            From sources other than general property tax                         $  6,000,000 
 
            Total Community Recreation Center Fund                             $32,000,000 
 
Equipment Replacement Fund 
            From unappropriated surpluses                                               $         -0-           
            From sources other than general property tax                         $    161,000     
 
            Total Equipment Replacement Fund                                       $    161,000 

 
 
            Johnson’s Corner Capital Improvement Fund 
  From unappropriated surpluses    $        20,200    
  From sources other than general property tax   $      124,100 
 
  Total Johnson’s Corner Capital Improvement Fund     $      144,300 
 
            Street Maintenance Fund  
                        From unappropriated surpluses                                                $     30,900 
                        From sources other than general property tax                          $   319,100 
 
                        Total Street Maintenance Fund                                                $    350,000 
 
              Library Fund 
  From unappropriated surpluses     $    373,089                                                                                                          
  From sources other than general property tax                         $      12,000                                      
  From the general property tax levy     $  1,184,911  
 
  Total Library Fund       $  1,570,000 
 
 
 Section 3. That the budget as submitted, amended, and herein above summarized by 
fund, hereby is approved and adopted as the budget of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado 
for the year stated above. 
 
Section 4.  That the budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the Mayor 
and Town Clerk and made a part of the public records of the Town. 
 
ADOPTED, THIS 3rd day of December, 2018. 
 
    TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
ATTEST     

BY:  
  Mayor 

 
Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10E 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
2018-20 

 
APPROPRIATING SUMS OF 

MONEY 
 

TO VARIOUS FUNDS 
 
 



 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10E 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2018-20, A Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money to the Various Funds 
and Spending Agencies in the Amounts and for the Purposes as Set Forth, for the Town of Johnstown, 
Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year. 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Resolution No. 2018-20 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: An appropriation is the legal spending limit authorizing the 
expenditures set forth by the Town Council.  The Council through an official action, either a resolution 
or ordinance, must enact the appropriation. 
 
The budget is merely a financial plan for the coming year, while the appropriation is the legal authority to 
spend the money. 
  

LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________ __________________________ 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution No. 2018-20 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
For Approval: I move to approve Resolution No. 2018-20, A Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money 
to the Various Funds and Spending Agencies in the Amounts and for the Purposes as Set Forth, for the 
Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year. 
 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of Resolution No. 2018-20, A Resolution Appropriating Sums of 
Money to the Various Funds and Spending Agencies in the Amounts and for the Purposes as Set Forth, 
for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year.  
Reviewed: 
 
___________________________ 
Town Manager 



RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY 
 

                                             RESOLUTION 2018-20 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE VARIOUS 
FUNDS AND SPENDING AGENCIES IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE 
PURPOSE AS SET FORTH BELOW, FOR THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, 
COLORADO FOR THE 2019 BUDGET YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has adopted the annual budget in accordance with the 
Local Government Budget Law, on December 3rd, 2018 and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has made provision therein for revenue in an amount 
equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said budget, and; 
 
WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the revenues 
provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to impair the 
operations of the Town. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
 
Section 1.  That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenue of each fund, 
to each fund, for purposes stated: 
 
 General Fund                                                                           $  31,260,100 
 Water Fund $    2,483,900
 Wastewater Fund $    2,074,000
 Conservation Trust Fund                                                         $    1,070,000     
 Impact Fee Fund                                                                      $       101,000 
 Drainage Fund                                                                         $       350,500 
 Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund                                       $    9,973,500 
            Contingent Fund                                                                      $    2,164,900 
            Community Recreation Center Fund                                       $  32,000,000 
            Equipment Replacement Fund                                                 $       161,000 
 Johnson's Corner Capital Imp. Fund                                        $       144,300 
            Street Maintenance Fund                                                         $        350,000  
 Library Fund  $     1,570,000    
                                   
          Total Estimated Expenditures                  $  83,703,200 
          
       ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of December, 2018. 
 
     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 
    
     BY:  
ATTEST     Mayor  
 
 
Town Clerk/Treasurer 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10F 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
2018-21 

 
LEVYING GENERAL  

 
PROPERTY TAXES 

 
 
 



 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 10F 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2018-21, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes for the Year 2019, to 
Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 Budget Year. 
 
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Resolution No. 2018-21 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk/Treasurer 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: If a local government needs property tax revenue to balance its proposed 
budget, it must take official action, by ordinance or resolution, to set and certify a mill levy.  It must then 
certify the mill levy to the Board of County Commissioners. 
 
Based upon the Town's adopted 2019 budget, it is recommended that the mill levy for the Town of Johnstown 
for the 2019 budget year be set at 23.947 mills.  
 

LEGAL ADVICE: N/A 
 __________________________________________________________ ______________________________ 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution No. 2018-21 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
For Approval: I move to approve Resolution No. 2018-21, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes for 
the Year 2019, to Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for the 2019 
Budget Year. 
 
For Denial: I move to deny approval of Resolution No. 2018-21, A Resolution Levying General Property 
Taxes for the Year 2019, to Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado for 
the 2019 Budget Year.  
Reviewed: 
 
___________________________ 
Town Manager 



RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-21 
 
A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE 
YEAR 2019 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR 
THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO FOR THE 2019 BUDGET 
YEAR 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown has adopted the annual 
budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget Law, on December 3rd, 2018, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for general operation 
expenses is $6,015,000, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for the library  
operation expenses is $472,500, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the 2019 valuation for assessment for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado as 
certified by the County Assessors is $266,426,485. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Town Council of the Town of 
Johnstown, Colorado: 
 
Section 1.  That the purpose of meeting all general operation expenses of the Town of 
Johnstown during the 2019 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 23.947 mills upon 
each dollar for the total valuation for assessment of all taxable property within the Town 
of Johnstown for the year 2018. 
 
Section 2.   That the Town Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to 
immediately certify to the County Commissioners of Weld County and Larimer County, 
Colorado, the mill levies for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado as herein above 
determined and set. 
 
ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of December, 2018. 
 
     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 
   
     BY:   
       Mayor 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
Clerk/Treasurer 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10G 
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

PURCHASING POLICY 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

The Community That Cares 

 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 
 
FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 
 
DATE:  November 5, 2018 (Initially Distributed) 
  December 3, 2018 
 
CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 
 
SUBJECT:  Purchasing Policy 
 
 
Enclosed for your review and feedback is an updated purchasing policy. Since starting for the 
Town as its Interim Manager one observation I have noted is the potential difficulty of 
expediting projects that have been budgeted in a given fiscal year. While to date there have not 
been any issues, the challenge exists with respect to the contract expense policy currently in 
place.  
 
In 2017, the policy was changed and currently allows for the Manager to approve contracts of 
$20,000 or less. Certainly there exists a responsibility upon us as staff to be able to plan 
accordingly, inclusive of having a general idea of what a projects timeline will be, but making 
changes to the purchasing policy also allows us as staff to be more efficient in processing the 
workflow and compress the timeline to complete projects. Attached for your consideration is a 
complete overhaul of the Town’s purchasing policy that among other changes would permit for 
the administrative approval of contracts that are budgeted and do not exceed $100,000. The 
changes that are proposed would still not permit for unappropriated funds to be spent and still 
allows the Council to hold the Manager accountable for maintain a balanced budget while 
delivering meaningful outcomes for the organization.  
 
One of the more notable components new to the purchasing policy is the introduction of a local 
bidder preference. Currently, there may not be many applications to this portion of the policy, 
but as the community grows and more primary employers, inclusive of general contractors 
establish their businesses in Johnstown, this application will change. 
 
This will be discussed for policy changes and feedback from the Council during the December 3, 
2018 Council Meeting. We want to be sure that you are comfortable with the changes and the 
controls it provides to ensure we are good stewards of the tax payer dollars in all purchases made 
by the Town. 

 



Purchasing & Surplus Property Policies 
  
The purpose of this policy is to establish purchasing guidelines.  These policies are applicable to all 
purchasing for the Town of Johnstown and are established to ensure that needed goods and services are 
obtained in a timely manner, at the lowest prices possible, consistent with acceptable quality standards.  

 
Consistent with these objectives, a part of the Town’s procurement activity is decentralized.  In recognition 
of the cost of staff time and to reduce the cost of making small purchases, purchasing cards are issued to 
selected personnel as approved by the Finance Director and/or Town Manager.  The purchasing card will 
be defined later in this manual. 
 
Procedures which apply to purchases made directly by Town staff as well as the steps followed by the 
Finance Department are described below, along with the public purchasing law and ethical standards that 
shape the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
From time to time, there may be revisions and/or additions to this policy, subject to the approval of the 
Johnstown Town Council.  
 
1.  Governing Laws and Policies.  Procurements by the Town of Johnstown are governed by the policies 
and procedures adopted by the Town Council and by state law, and these purchasing policies further 
establish requirements for the Town’s purchasing activities. 
 
2.  Conflict of Interest.  No employee or official of the Town shall participate in a transaction, contract, 
activity, or service of the Town which has a direct or predictable effect on their financial interests or the 
financial interests of an immediate family member. 
 
3.  Personal Purchases.  It is prohibited for an employee or official to make purchases for personal purposes 
or to receive special pricing from a vendor using the Town’s name, account or reputation.   
 
4.  Payment Authorization.  All requests for payment must be approved by the Department Head or Town 
Manager.  Employees can not authorize payments to themselves.  For purposes of this policy, unless 
otherwise modified by the Town Manager, “department heads” include those employees who report directly 
to the Town Manager. “Supervisory personnel” shall include both the Water and Wastewater Supervisor 
and Streets Supervisor. 
 
5.  Purchase Orders.  A receipt or invoice shall be provided on all purchases. A purchase order is required 
for all purchases over $300.00. 
 
6.  Purchasing Thresholds/Authority.  Generally the purchasing thresholds detailed below will be 
applicable. (If there are grant funds involved, the thresholds may differ.  Please refer to any grant 
requirements and proceed using the most restrictive standards.): 

a. Under $2,500.  Small items in this category, used on a day to day basis, may be purchased with 
the approval of supervisory personnel without competitive bidding on each item.  However, even 
on these items, periodic telephone inquiries should be made to be certain the purchases are secured 
from a local source at the lowest possible price for the quality needed.  Items that are used on a day 
to day basis consist of office supplies and other items that routinely purchased.  Department heads 
may authorize employees to purchase budgeted items. 

b. $2,500 - $49,999.99.  Purchases or contracts for services for the sum of $10,000 to $49,999.99 shall 
be secured on a competitive bid basis.  This must be accomplished by securing at least three 



informal bids, requests for proposals or through the formal bid process utilizing advertisement and 
specifications; whichever is most advantageous to the Town. 

c. $50,000 and higher.  Any item for services, projects, or equipment in this category shall be 
purchased through the formal bid process.  Formal bids shall be secured by advertisement.  
Additionally, a random sample of vendors who qualify, or who have indicated an interest in 
bidding, shall be forwarded a copy of the specifications, when possible to ensure the best 
competitive bids for the Town. 

a. Appropriated Items up to $100,000 – Construction contracts and purchases can be 
approved by the Town Manager. 

b. Appropriated Items up to $10,000 - Construction contracts can be approved by department 
head and notification of the Town Manager. 

c. Non-Appropriated Items exceeding $25,000 – Must go before the Town Council and be 
approved and appropriated by resolution. 

 
7.  Local Purchasing Preference. 

a.  If a local bidder is within five (5%) percent of the lowest bid from an out of town bidder 
on a construction or other formally bid project from $0.00 - $4,999.99, two (2%) percent 
on such project(s) from $5,000.00 up to $999,999.99, and within one percent on such 
project(s) from $1,000,000.00 up to $5,000,000.00, then the local bidder will be awarded 
the bid unless otherwise provided in this section. 

b.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply in the following  
 instances: 

a. When purchases and/or contracts are funded in whole or in part    
  by federal funds; 

       b. When purchases are more than $5,000,000.00; 
c. When purchases are not required to be formally bid, such as sole source 

procurements, emergency procurements and any other such procurements as 
defined in the Town procurement policy or the Town emergency management 
policy; 

      d. When professional services are procured through the issuance    
  of requests for qualifications and/or requests for proposals,     
  including design-build contracts; or,  
      e. When such preference is in conflict with any applicable state or    
  federal laws, rules or regulations. 

c.  The local purchasing preference policy shall not apply to private construction projects 
financed with public assistance, including, but not limited to, tax increment financing, 
redevelopment projects and enterprise zone redevelopment. 

d. “Local” is defined as a business operating within the corporate limits of the Town of 
Johnstown, with the majority of its primary business operations, including, but not 
necessarily limited to, production, operation, purchasing, billing, marketing, 
management, administration and ownership, occurring within the town limits.  “Local” 
shall not include the following: 

      a.  Those businesses with only a local Johnstown post office box;     
     b.  Those businesses with a sales presence in the Town, but no    
 physical business location within the Town limits 

      c.  Home based businesses that merely take orders for products    
  shipped from out-of town to their customers.  Exceptions will be    



  considered on a case-by-case basis when a written request is    
  submitted to the Town Manager.  
      d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the local bidder must otherwise meet all   
  qualifications and procurement policy requirements of the Town, including,  
   but not limited to, the “best bid” requirements, in order to be awarded a  
   bid under this section. 
 
8.  Bid Guidelines.   

a. Correspondence with Vendors.  All correspondence with vendors should be communicated 
through the department head responsible for overseeing the specific bid unless the bid 
specifications make it advisable to delegate authority to others. 

b. Formal Bid Notice.  All formal bid purchases or formal contracts for services shall be 
advertised as follows: 

a. All notices and solicitations of bids shall state the time and place of the bid 
opening.  If required the request for bids will be published in the newspaper and 
posted on the Town’s website at least 10 days prior to the bid deadline.  The request 
shall include an adequate description of the scope of work to be completed, any 
specifics which may be required of the vendor, including the amount of any bid 
bond, all contractual terms, and conditions application to the public project. 

b. Notices and solicitations of bids shall include information that these are sealed bids 
and that they should be so identified on the envelope. 

c. Notices and solicitations of bids shall plainly state to whom the sealed bid(s) 
should be addressed, and should be filed with the Town Clerk. 

d. When advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed as 
per CFR200.319 thru CFR200.322 and as amended from time to time to ensure 
proper competition of project awards.  This also entails taking necessary 
affirmative action steps to assure that minority businesses, women’s business 
enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

d. Public Opening.  All bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place designated in the 
invitation for bids.  The amount of each bid and such other relevant information as may be 
specified by rules, together with the name of each bidder shall be entered on a record and 
open to public inspection.  After the time of the award, all bids and requests for proposal 
documents shall be open to public inspection. 

e. Performance Bonds.  Performance bonds, in cash or otherwise, or other acceptable 
financial assurance such as a letter of credit shall be requested if in the best interest of the 
Town or if otherwise required by law in such an amount as may be deemed sufficient to 
secure the execution of the contract or to furnish supplies.  

f. Technology and Advertising.  The Town will use electronic means (i.e. internet, email, 
etc.) to inform potential vendors and may use technology to improve transparency and 
purchasing efficiencies for the Town.  All available means for advertising the invitation to 
bid shall be used to the extent possible, to encourage full and open competition.  When 
advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed in CFR200.319 
to ensure proper competition of project awards is encouraged.  This also entails, for 
example, taking necessary affirmative steps to assure that the minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.  

g. Competitive Buying.  Town policy requires quotes or bids to be obtained from as many 
providers as reasonably possible to ensure a competitive marketing atmosphere and 
advantageous pricing.  Bids will be solicited when required by policy and also when it is 
found to be advantageous to do so.  Any qualified provider may respond to a Town request 
for quote or bid. 



h.  Awards.  The Town of Johnstown reserves the right to reject any and all bids and waive 
any informality.  The Town of Johnstown also reserves the right to select the lowest and/or 
best bidder as determined by the Town in its sole discretion.  Bidders may be disqualified 
for past failure to follow proper change order processes or failure to complete projects in a 
timely and/or professional work like manner.   

 
9.  Exclusive Service.  Sole source purchases may be made if it has been determined that there is only one 
good or service that can reasonably meet the need and there is only one vendor who can provide the good 
or service.  Written justification for the sole source purchase must be retained with support for the purchase. 
 
10.  Emergency Purchases.  In the event of natural disasters, accidents or other emergencies where health, 
safety or welfare of the community is at risk, the Town shall comply with the procurement requirements to 
the extent practicable, but this may be waived by the Town Manager.  The Town Manager will notify the 
Town Council of any emergency immediately identifying the nature of the emergency and any purchase 
which may be required.  Forms required herein for the purpose of authorizing and acquiring goods or 
services necessary for the immediate preservation of life, health, safety, welfare or property during a local 
disaster or emergency conditions shall not require compliance with bidding requirements set forth in this 
Policy and may be awarded on a sole-source basis.  Documentation of procurement decisions in an 
emergency period is required to be retained, to support the urgency of the purchase and as justification for 
deviation of any Town policy.  Once the Town is no longer operating in an emergency period, adherence 
to the approved procurement requirements is required.  Careful consideration shall be given to procurement 
decisions made in an emergency period and when grant funds may be received.  Federal procurement 
guidance currently available (at CFR200.319) indicates that purchases above the dollar threshold of a micro 
purchase, currently $3,000, must also have three written quotes to support the cost reasonableness of the 
purchase.  If, at any time, a purchase may have a grant implication, purchaser should follow guidance from 
the grantor. 
 
11.  Exemptions From Public Bidding.  The Town recognizes the need to use outside sources for providing 
Professional Services, constructing Capital Projects (vendors and contractors) and for providing services 
for day to day operations and maintenance.  The Town requires staff to solicit bids for any purchase of 
goods over $50,000, per engagement or annually.  This requirement may be waived by the Town Manager 
for ongoing service contracts where the past experience related directly to the Town is a compelling reason 
to continue a service contract from year to year.  Selection of vendors, contractors or consultants may be 
based on past experience with the Town, knowledge of the Town and region, philosophy of the nature of 
the job, availability of time, quality of product, quality of service and material, maintenance, warranties, 
price and other such criteria as deemed appropriate for a particular public project.  The Town recognizes 
the following exemptions for the Public Bid Process: 

a. Professional Services.  This purchasing policy shall not apply to professional services and 
the requirements shall not be mandatory in the employment of professional services.  
Professional services include, but are not limited to the following:  Attorneys, Bond 
Counsel, Certified Public Accountants/Auditors, Consultants, Engineers, Financial 
Advisors, Physicians and Real Estate Brokers. The Council may award these services as 
desired and at their discretion. The staff shall use the following criteria when applicable 
and necessary, based on a specific project that includes: 

a. Past experience in performing the services requested. 
b. Responsiveness to the needs of the Town, with respect to time to complete the 

project, the approach to the project, and anticipated design concepts offered. 
c. Responsibility and experience in dealing with municipal governments and 

projects of similar size, scope, and nature. 
d. The professional's engagement team, including the experience and resumes of 

key personnel assigned. 



e. Results of reference checks and past performance for other clients 
b. Design Build Services.  This policy shall not apply to design-build specialty services so 

long as the project does not exceed $100,000. If less than $100,000, the following 
evaluation criteria shall apply: 

a. A guaranteed maximum price must be agreed upon and any savings shall revert 
back to the Town if the final project cost is less than the guaranteed maximum 
price. 

b. The Town shall have the option at any time to validate proposed costs and fees 
of the professional who must disclose all information used to arrive at the 
proposed costs and fees. 

c. Use of State Bids or Existing Contracts.  This purchasing policy shall not apply if the 
purchasing department is able to piggy-back on a State Bid Award, GSA bid award, or 
other bid award by a local government entity where a public bid process has taken place. 
Appropriate verification of the bid must be provided, the cost does not exceed $100,000, 
and is available in the budget. 

d. Waiver of Bidding Process.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this policy, the Town may 
forego the bidding process altogether in certain specific instances that would be in the best 
interests of the Town provided that there is sufficient information and documentation to 
demonstrate that a waiver of the procedure would benefit the Town.  Any deviations from 
the bidding process must have Town Manager approval, who shall then generate a report 
to the Town Council for the next Town Council meeting explaining the reasons for the 
waiver.  It is intended that this process should be used infrequently and only when there is 
supporting information to demonstrate that the waiver would be in the best interests of the 
Town and not in any fashion compromise the integrity of the overall bidding policy of the 
Town. 

  
12.  Contract Authority.  The Town Manager or department head shall have the power and duty to approve 
and execute, by signature, all contracts or agreements of, or on behalf of, the Town or its enterprises, subject 
to the following limitations. 

a. Amount to Exceed $100,000.  Contracts or agreements that exceed $100,000 must be 
approved by the Council unless part of an annual contract and appropriated in the budget. 

b. Conveyances.  No contract or agreement shall involve conveyances of interest in land, 
bonds, indentures, evidence of indebtedness, or proclamations, unless the authority to 
approve and execute such documents shall be granted by the Council. 

c. Intergovernmental Agreements.  Such contract or agreement does not constitute an 
“intergovernmental agreement” under Colorado law. 

d. Delegation.  The Town Manager may delegate the signatory authority for the approval and 
execution of contracts and agreements to department heads when the contractual matters 
fall within their area of responsibility. 

e. Appropriation.  No contract shall be approved or executed unless funds for the payment of 
obligations under the contract or agreement are in the budget and have been approved by 
the Town Council.  This section shall not prohibit the approval and execution of multi-year 
contracts or agreement where such agreements are legally permissible. 

f. Legal Review.  Unless of a routine nature as determined by the Town Manager or the 
Town’s standard form of contractor/professional services agreement cannot be used, all 
contracts or agreements are subject to legal review. 

 
13.  Town Issued Purchasing Cards.  This policy applies to all items procured by the use of a Town-issued 
Purchasing Card. 

a. Issuance.  Town purchasing cards may only be issued to department heads or other 
personnel as authorized by the Town Manager and Finance Director. 



b. Legitimate Business Expenses.  A purchasing card shall be used for purchases on behalf, 
or costs associated with, approved travel and proper Town business expenses.  No 
cardholder may procure goods or services for personal purposes.  Personal use of a 
purchasing card consists of an item that is not a legitimate business expense and must be 
reimbursed to the Town.  Misuse of the card could subject an employee to discipline 
pursuant to the personnel policies of the Town.  Department Heads may make available 
purchasing cards for purchases where time is of the essence to save the Town money; where 
credit card is the only or easiest form of payment accepted for a product or service; or when 
required for travel purposes.  It is the responsibility of the Department Head to notify the 
Finance Department if an employee is no longer authorized to use the Town’s purchasing 
card. 

c. Purchasing Procedures.  Purchases made with the purchasing card should follow all 
guidelines as stated in this Financial Policy document. 

d. Travel Related Expenses.  If a spouse or family member is accompanying the employee on 
a business trip, only employee’s travel expenses may be charged to the card.  Airline tickets 
or other travel expenses related to the family member must be paid by the individual at the 
time of purchase.  It is not acceptable to reimburse the Town for those expenses.  Personal 
expenses may not be charged to the hotel room and must be paid for separately.  Hotel, car 
rental, parking, taxi, etc. receipts must be submitted to the Finance Department within a 
week of return from the business trip.  Travel expenses for the employee will be reimbursed 
up to the maximum allowed for that location by U.S. General Service Administration 
(www.gsa.gov).  Mileage will be reimbursed at the published Internal Revenue Service 
(IRS) standard mileage rate.  Mileage will only be reimbursed if no Town vehicle is 
available for use. 

e. Monthly Statements.  It will be the responsibility of the card holder to reconcile the monthly 
credit card statements and receipts.  Original receipts must be submitted to the Finance 
Department within one week of purchase.  Failure to do so will result in loss of purchasing 
card privileges.   
 

14. Surplus Property Disposal.  As items are purchased with public funds, the Town Manager must declare 
items to be surplus prior to disposal and said disposal must follow the provisions herein. 

a. De Minimis Valued Items.  Non-capital material and supply items that are normally used 
up during the normal course of business and have individual value less than $250 are 
exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be thrown away, 
destroyed, donated or sold with approval from the Town Manager or Finance Director. 

b. Unusable Equipment.  The disposal of capital equipment with a salvage value less than 
$2,500 is exempted from the formal surplus disposal process.  These items can be sold 
for salvage value without a declaration of surplus property, upon approval from the Town 
Manager or Finance Director. 

c. Auction or Sale of Property (Formal).  When the current value is deemed to exceed 
$2,500, it can be offered at public auction or written bid.  The bid must be advertised at 
least 10 days prior to sale.  If no bids are received or if a determination is made that the 
market value of the property exceeds the offer of the highest bidder, all bids may be 
rejected and the appropriate Department Head and Finance Department may negotiate a 
sale. 

 

http://www.gsa.gov/


 
AGENDA ITEM 10H 
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

2019 COUNCIL 
 

GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
INFORMATION ONLY 

 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Interim Town Manager 

 

DATE:  December 3, 2018 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Town Council FY 2019 Strategic Goals and Objectives 

 

 

Following the October 15, 2018 Town Council Meeting, the Council conducted a work session 

focused on identification of the Strategic Goals and Objectives for the upcoming FY 2019. The 

Council discussed what I heard was 5 priorities, those being: 

 

1. Water Resources & Planning 

2. Economic Development 

3. Affordable Housing 

4. Employee Culture 

5. Infrastructure Planning 

 

Within each of 5 priorities, there are a number of goals and objectives communicated during the 

work session and formulated into meaningful milestones from which to measure the 

organizational effectiveness of the staff.  

 

The Mayor will guide this discussion to be sure that the goals and objectives have been 

appropriately captured in this document. It is also important to note that there are a couple of 

recent and recurring items that I have included, that also can be wrapped around the 5 priorities 

of the Council.  

 

Staff looks forward to your thoughts and constructive feedback of the planned work and 

outcomes for FY 2019. 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 

Strategic Objective #1:  Water Resources & Planning 

 

WHY:   The Town has a healthy portfolio of water. To ensure continued growth, 

the Town must have access to all of the water sources in the portfolio and make 

them available for municipal, consumptive use.  

 

MILESTONES/CHECKPOINTS: 

 

1. Hillsboro Ditch Access: 

1. Description: The Town has water ownership in the Hillsboro Ditch they 

are currently not able to access. The Town consequently needs to 

evaluate the best method to access this water by either building a batch 

plant or constructing a water main to feed to the existing water treatment 

plant. 

2. Measured: Analysis of alternatives presented to Town Council for 

direction to staff that will include recommendations and estimated 

financial costs of each alternative with 5 year projected operational costs. 

3. Date: June 30, 2019 or sooner 

4. Does not include: Design and construction costs - based on study and 

Council direction. 

5. Budget: $40,000 in FY2019 

 

2. Water Court Proceedings: 

1. Description: Begin Water Court proceedings for water desired to be 

changed to municipal and consumptive use. The water may include up to 

100 shares of Home Supply Ditch and the Pulliam Water based on Town 

Water Counsel and Engineer recommendations. 

2. Measured: Town Council will consider pros and cons presented by 

Town Staff, Water Counsel and Engineers related to consolidating a 

planned water court case that may include both the Home Supply Ditch 

and Pulliam Waters. Based on Council direction, we will proceed 

accordingly. 

3. Date: Not later than March 4, 2019 Council Meeting 

4. Does not include: Completion of water court proceedings (estimated 2.5 

years) being fully adjudicated 

5. Budget: FY2019 fund available for analysis. Additional funds may need 

to be appropriated for legal and engineering costs 

 
 
 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 
Strategic Objective #2:  Economic Development 

 

WHY:   Economic Development is critical to the long-term sustainability of our 

local community. The combination of retention and recruitment of businesses in 

our community ensures stability, improved and more diverse revenue sources,  

 

MILESTONES/CHECKPOINTS: 

 

1. Town of Johnstown & Chamber Partnership: 

1. Description: Establish a relationship and enter into an agreement with 

the Chamber that focuses on economic development in our community 

2. Measured: Presentation of an agreement between the Town and 

Chamber for Council consideration. 

3. Date: End of 2018 

4. Does not include: NA. 

5. Budget: $12,000 respectively for FY2018 and FY2019 

 
2. Urban Renewal Authority (URA) Exploration: 

1. Description: Urban Renewal is a tool that can be used as an economic 

development tool for development and redevelopment of property in the 

Town limits. Through the creation and use of Tax Increment Financing 

(TIF), incentives can be financed over a 25 year period for infrastructure 

improvements and development. 

2. Measured: Provide the Board with an overview of Urban Renewal Law 

to educate the values of a URA and receive direction on if to move 

forward in the creation of the URA. 

3. Date: June 30, 2019 

4. Does not include: Creation of the Urban Renewal Authority 

5. Budget: $3,500 for legal support 

 
3. Primary Job Initiatives and Creation: 

1. Description: Primary job initiatives and creation are a critical component 

to long term fiscal health. By having these businesses in our community 

it creates a more diverse economy in Johnstown and has a multiplier 

effect on the other types of land uses in our community (new homes, 

other business types experience revenue growth, etc.) 

2. Measured: Submit a minimum of 2 proposals through our economic 

development partner to compete for primary jobs in our community. 

3. Date: December 31, 2019 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

4. Does not include: Guarantee of the primary employer choosing 

Johnstown 

5. Budget: Staff time 

 
4. Comprehensive Plan Update and Strategic Plan: 

1. Description: Both the Comprehensive Plan and the Strategic Plan have 

not been updated since 2006 and 2009 respectively. The landscape of the 

community has changed significantly over this time and making updates 

to these guiding documents is critical to provide clear direction by the 

community and for staff is imperative. 

2. Measured: Begin the Comprehensive Plan process by issuing an RFP 

and selecting a consultant to facilitate the process. Completion will be in 

mid 2019. 

3. Date: May 1, 2019 

4. Does not include: Completion or adoption of the plans 

5. Budget: FY 2019 appropriations will need to be made based on Council 

direction. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 

Strategic Objective #3:  Affordable Housing 

 

WHY:   Housing in Northern Colorado has increased significantly since coming 

out of the recession. This make availability of housing extremely difficult for 

families just starting out in the workforce. By partnering with our Johnstown 

Housing Authority (JHA), there may be more opportunities to developing diverse 

and affordable housing types. 

 

MILESTONES/CHECKPOINTS: 

 

1. Johnstown Housing Authority: 

1. Description: JHA has debt on the existing senior housing facility they 

currently operate with a suggested 11% interest on the debt. 

2. Measured: Partner with JHA to explore, suggest and promote alternative 

financing options for the existing debt that provides for pursuing 

additional affordable housing options within the community. 

3. Date: March 31, 2019 

4. Does not include: Completion of refinancing. 

5. Budget: NA – Staff time only 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 

Strategic Objective #4:  Employee Culture 

 

WHY:   The Town’s most valuable assets are its employees. By focusing on 

employee culture, we are able to create a healthy work environment that results in 

higher productively, more meaningful and greater outcomes, and a preferred local 

government that employees want to work at.  

 

MILESTONES/CHECKPOINTS: 

 

1. Human Infrastructure: 

1. Description: There are several director positions that will need to be 

hired in the next 90 days to fill vacancies, those retiring, or creation 

of new position to create a stronger human infrastructure and 

balance critical resources. These director positions include the 

Public Works Director, Finance Director, and Planning Director.  

2. Measured: Complete hiring of all three (3) positions with positions 

filled and working for Johnstown. 

3. Date: March 31, 2019 

4. Does not include: NA 

5. Budget: Appropriated in FY2019 

 

2. Upstaffing: 

1. Description: There may be the need for other employees in the 2019 

fiscal year that have yet to be realized. Some of these may include 

economic development coordinator, Planner 1, public works 

staffing, and/or administrative staff. This will help to meet 

development community deadlines, ensure adequate customer 

service levels, and continue the forward momentum of Johnstown.  

2. Measured: Presentations to Council for requested personnel as 

justified and approved. 

3. Date: As necessary 

4. Does not include: NA 

5. Budget: FY2019 appropriations would need to be made if approved 

on a case by case basis. 

 

3. Employee Benefits: 

1. Description: While take home pay is the most notable aspect of an 

employees benefits, other aspects such as the personnel policy, health and 

wellness and retirement benefits, and investing in our employees with 

training and educational opportunities, are often overlooked as key 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

elements that make up the employees’ total package of incentives. 

Evaluating these items helps to build employee morale and culture. 

2. Measured: Review and update the personnel policies last updated in 

2014 for Council review and consideration. 

3. Date: May 6, 2019 

4. Measured: Explore existing and alternative opportunities for health and 

wellness benefits for FY2020 consideration 

5. Date: October 1, 2019 (FY2020 Work Sessions) 

6. Does not include: Presenting of alternatives on both measured items, not 

approval (subject to Council approval and direction) 

7. Budget: Staff time only 

 

4. Succession Planning: 

1. Description: The result of retirement is a loss of institutional 

knowledge, leadership, departmental structure and culture unless we 

are proactive in preparing for this change. Making a deliberate and 

conscious effort to work on succession planning and leadership 

development within the organization should be utilized to ensure the 

Town is able to manage these transitions and opportunities. 

2. Measured: Have all employees complete a goals assessment for 

their personal objectives to help begin evaluation of opportunities 

for education and leadership development within the organization. 

This will also allow us to identify gaps in the organization related to 

resignations and retirement. 

3. Date: September 1, 2019 

4. Does not include: Financial component for minimizing succession 

gaps 

5. Budget: NA – Staff time only 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 

Strategic Objective #5:  Infrastructure Planning 

 

WHY:   Infrastructure comes in many different forms. For purposes of this 

objective, it is being considered for both our human infrastructure and our utility 

and network infrastructure. Planning for these elements is critical for long-term 

financial planning and to ensure that we have leaders who can implement the plans 

for strengthening our community.  

 

MILESTONES/CHECKPOINTS: 

 

1. Capital Improvement Plan: 

1. Description: The creation of a Capital Improvement Plan allows both the 

Council and the Staff to understand and know where the organization is 

going with respect to capital improvements in the community. It also 

provides a basis for designing a financial plan for how we are going to 

afford the capital projects called for in the plan. 

2. Measured: Completion of the 2019-2028 Capital Improvement Plan 

(CIP) 

3. Date: February 18, 2019 

4. Does not include: Projects < $5,000 

5. Budget: Staff and Council time only 
 

2. Road Improvement Plan: 

1. Description: A portion of this plan will be included in the CIP, but we 

will also need to determine what the quality of the Town roads are to 

establish a priority level for major road maintenance and reconstruction. 

This document while it can be modified given changes in conditions and 

Council priorities, it will provide a general direction for long-term road 

maintenance. 

2. Measured: Road Maintenance Plan Document presented to Board 

3. Date: September 1, 2019 

4. Does not include: Comprehensive financial plan for roads 

5. Budget: FY2019 funds may need to be appropriated for road conditions 

survey 

 

3. Water System Master Plan Projects: 

1. Description: In 2016, the Council was presented with a Water System 

Master Plan. Components of this plan have still yet to be completed 

which necessitates attention to the plan and beginning incremental 

change  



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

2. Measured: Staff to review the document and provide the Council with 

an update on its progress and recommendations for next steps 

3. Date: Not later than May 31, 2019 

4. Does not include: Construction of a project 

5. Budget: FY2019 fund will need to be appropriated based on Council 

direction 

 

4. Water and Sewer Mapping and Expansion Plan: 

1. Description: Currently, the Town does not have a Geographic 

Information System with the Town’s water and sewer utility mapped. 

This is a critical piece of infrastructure to understand the dynamics of 

bottle necks, pressure issues, maintenance concerns, as well as expansion 

opportunities for long-term planning. 

2. Measured: Map the Town’s Water and Sewer Infrastructure 

3. Date: November 1, 2019 

4. Does not include: A Geographic Information System Software and 

associated personnel. 

5. Budget: FY2019 will need to be appropriated for the project mapping 

and future years for staffing and software equipment. 

 

5. 402/I-25 Interchange/Frontage Road: 

1. Description: CDOT desires to dispose of the Frontage road along I-25 

and have the Town take ownership of the road. In order to do this the 

Council needs to approve an IGA that works for both parties under the 

disposal and acceptance of this agreement. The agreements must include 

improvements to the bridge system on the frontage road to prevent future 

accessibility issues related to flood and other natural disaster items. 

2. Measured: Council considers an agreement or IGA to take ownership of 

the Frontage Road on East side of I-25. 

3. Date: January 31, 2019 

4. Does not include: Long-term maintenance items. 

5. Budget: Staff time only for the IGA/Agreement. 

 

6. LCR 3, WCR 50 and High Plains Boulevard: 

1. Description: The listed roadways are either unimproved or nonexistent 

and provide critical connection points to our transportation network. As 

part of these roadway improvements, collaboration and partnerships 

among various government entities in the area will be essential to making 

these critical roadway improvements. 

2. Measured: Updates related to potential agreements and financing the 

improvements to these roads. 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

3. Date: December 2019 

4. Does not include: Construction, but may include components and 

direction related to the design of one or more the roadways 

5. Budget: FY2019 will be staff time unless commitment are made by 

partnering governments; then appropriations may be requested for 

consideration. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

 
Town Manager Goal Timeline Overview 

Priority # 
Q1  

2019 

Q2  
2019 

Q3  
2019 

Q4  
2019 

Notes 

1. Accessing Hillsboro Ditch Water 
Analysis 

 X    

2. Water Court Proceedings X     

3. Town of Johnstown & Chamber of 
Commerce Partnership 

    12/2018 

4. Urban Renewal Law Education  X    

5. Primary Job Initiatives and 
Creation 

   X  

6. Comprehensive Plan Update & 
Strategic Plan Kick-Off 

 X    

7. Johnstown Housing Authority X     

8. Human Infrastructure (Directors) X     

9. Upstaffing 
As Necessary and Presented to 

Council for Approval  

10. Employee Benefits & Personnel 
Policy Updates 

 X    

11. Succession Planning   X   

12. Capital Improvement Plan X     

13. Road Improvement Plan   X   

14. Water System Mater Plan 
Projects 

 X    



Johnstown Town Council 2019 Strategic Objectives 
DRAFT – October 15, 2018 Work Session 

Priority # 
Q1  

2019 

Q2  
2019 

Q3  
2019 

Q4  
2019 

Notes 

15. Water and Sewer Mapping    X  

16. 402/I-25/Frontage Road IGA X     

17. LCR 3, WCR 50, High Plains Blvd.    X  

 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 

COUNCIL GOALS:  These are items the Council would like for us to be 

considering as the organization moves forward. 

 
1.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

(Representatives from 
Waste Management) 




































	ADP9F9.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 6 A-E
	CONSENT


	ADP64A.tmp
	Town Manager

	ADP7FFC.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 9A

	December 3 Council Packet Part #21.pdf
	December 3 Council Packet_Part70.pdf
	ADP4EE7.tmp
	RESOLUTION 2018-21
	Clerk/Treasurer



	December 3 Council Packet_Part69.pdf
	Resolution 2018-20 Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money.pdf
	Johnson's Corner Capital Imp. Fund                                        $       144,300
	Street Maintenance Fund                                                         $        350,000


	December 3 Council Packet_Part66.pdf
	ADPDCDC.tmp
	Johnson's Corner Capital Imp. Fund                                       $       144,300
	Street Maintenance Fund                                                         $       350,000


	December 3 Council Packet_Part67.pdf
	ADPDCDC.tmp
	Total General Fund   $31,260,100
	Water Fund
	From unappropriated surpluses                                                   $         -0-



	ADPCC9B.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP3897.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10C

	ADPDABF.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10B

	ADPF7C3.tmp
	Town Manager

	December 3 Council Packet Part #2.pdf
	ADP8062.tmp
	Town Manager


	ADPFBC8.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10D

	ADPF583.tmp
	___________________________
	Town Manager

	ADPE7CC.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10E

	ADPFAE1.tmp
	___________________________
	Town Manager

	ADPD9AD.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10F

	ADPA057.tmp
	___________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP32AD.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10G

	ADP7FC.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADPAEC6.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP4B65.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10A

	ADP12F9.tmp
	Town Manager

	ADP5CA8.tmp
	Town Manager

	ADPEE9C.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10H

	ADPDB7C.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	ADPCBBA.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 11




